
A-18-R-6 

Housing Authority of the City of laredo 
Regular 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 
l HA Board Room 

2000 San Francisco Ave. 
l aredo, Texas 78040 
Friday, July 20, 2018 

3:15 p.m. 

Minutes July 20, 2018 

1. CAll TO ORDER Chairman Ceballos welcomed everybody present and ca lled the meeting to 
order at 3:16 p.m. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Chairman Ceballos led them in the rec ital of the pledge. 

3. ROLL CAll AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM Ms. Mary Gaona, Executive Director, proceeded 
with roll call. M s. Gaona stated that they were not able to get in contact with Commissioner 
Ms. Alvarez . 

Commissioners Present 
Jose l. Ceballos, Chai rman 
Dr. Sergio D. Garza, Vice-Chairma n 
Dr. Marisela Rodriguez, Commissioner 
An ita Guerra, Commissioner 

Commissioners Absent 

Marcela Alva rez, Commissioner 

Chairman Ceballos stated that they had a quorum and would proceed w ith the meeting. 

Staff Present 
M ary Gaona, Executive Director 
Christy Ramos, Administ rat ive Assistant 
Jose Collazo, Specia l Projects Coordinator 
Bulm aro Cruz, Project Specific Manager 
M ary De la Rosa, Interim Human Resource Ass istant 
Rosie Ortiz, Property Manager 
Melissa Ortiz, Director of Compliance and Quality Assurance 
Griselda Resendez, Property Manager 
Monica Rivera, Property Manager 
Esmie leyva, Property Manager 
Alfon so Trevino, Jr., Project Specific Manager 
Eduardo Palacios, Project Specific Manager 
Bertha Galvan, Director of Section 8 
Alma O. Mata, Interim Director of Community & Economic Development 
Roberto Pen a, Director of IT 
Frank lopez, Procurement Officer 



Jennifer Barrientos, Interim Finance Director 
Rafael Vidaurri , Director of Housing r"janagement 
Leticia Sosa, Office Clerk 
Attorney Ricardo De Anda 
Attorney Doug Poneck 

Others Present 
Rosie Rios, Central Resident Council President 
Yolanda Martinez, Central R. Council 
Ignacio Hinojosa 
Ri cardo Ramos 
Angel Mendoza 
Mario Chavez 

4. CHAIRMAN'S COMMENTS 

Chairm an Ceballos stated that they had a long agenda and would reserve any comm ents in 
regards to this item. 

S. CITIZENS COMMENTS 

This is the opportunity for visitors and guests to address the Board of Commissioners on any 
issue. The Board may not discuss any presented issue, nor may any action be taken on any 
issues at th is time. There will be a 3-minute limitation per speaker. (Texas Attorney General 
Opinion-JC-0169) 

Chairman Ceballos stated that there were no public comments. 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners meeting on May 25, 2018. 

Chairman Ceballos thanked Ms. Sosa for the very long minutes which consisted of less 
pages t han before, but it was still 20 pages with a lot of detai l and mentioned that it 
does help because he had recently read some of the previous minutes and it had helped 
him remember what actions they had taken and also the discussions and stated that he 
assumed the minutes had been prepared by M s. Sosa. M s. Sosa confi rmed. 

Chairman Ceballos asked if there were any comment s. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to approve the minutes. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

7. PRESENTATION BY CENTRAL RESIDENT COUNCIL 

2 



Ms. Ros ie Rios, President of the Central Resident Counci l, presented to the Board and thanked them 
for invi ting them to the Board meeting and mentioned that the next Central Resident Counci l meeting 
would ta ke place July 30, 2018 and stated that she hoped somebody from Laredo Housing would 
preside the meeting. Ms. Rios stated that they were awa re there had been some changes in Laredo 
Housing; therefore, they were hoping somebody would be able to preside at the next Centra l 
Resident Council meet ing and she thanked the Board of Commissioners. 

Chairman Ceballos thanked M s. Rios for her presentation. 

8. PRESENTATIONS INo Action to be taken) 

A. Executive Director's Report 

M s. Gaona mentioned that they wou ld see in the Executive Director's Report that they 
had severa l trainings for the staff and they wou ld also see the waiting list for Public 
Housing which had 807 people and for Farm Labor they still had nine vacancies and 
stated that they cont inue doing outreach in order for the property manager t o be able 
to see how they would address it. In regards to the accounts receivable for the month 
ending June 30, 2018, M s. Gaona mentioned that they had two propert ies in litigation 
with big amounts and stated that they would be addressing one of them by the end of 
the month, so they would be doing better. In refe rence to the waiting list for Section 8 
Ms. Gaona stated that they current ly had 120 people on the wa iting list and were adding 
to it by going to Zapata on Mondays and they were also going to Asherton. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked how they would advertise in Zapata that there is a 
waiting list and mentioned that he had heard of a fami ly that was in dire need and found 
out through one of the teachers that a student was acting up. M s. Gaona mentioned 
that they would advertise in the newspaper and also when they go to Zapata they would 
post announcements. Chairman Ceballos asked M s. Gaona to explain and provide some 
background on how they had arri ved at starting goi ng to Zapata. M s. Gaona stated that 
they got a complaint and the Judge from Zapata reached out to Laredo Housing to see 
if they could go back to doing 118 vouchers that are dedicated to Zapata, so they went 
to Zapata and met w ith the Judge and it was agreed that the Judge would provide them 
with the space. Before they had been going to the public library, but t he problem t here 
was when they open the wai ting list, they would have a lot of people applying that would 
be from out of town, not really residents from Zapat a, so they had not had enough 
people to fill the waiting list. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked how they had been meeting 
in the library because he had been working in Zapata for 15 years and he would go to 
the lib ra ry, which he mentioned is a beautiful library, but he never saw anybody in th e 
library. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the Judge gave them the space. 
Commiss ioner M s. Guerra asked if the space was at the Courthouse. Vice-Chairman Dr. 
Garza mentioned that it was actually on Highway 81 going towards Roma. Chairman 
Ceballos mentioned that the space they have now is at a Community Center in a small 
office building next to the DPS office. 

3 



Bertha Galvan, Interim Section 8 Administrator, stated that the office in Zapata is 
located next to the DPS office, the address being 607 Highway 83 and the manager is 
laura Garza and mentioned that the waiting list is open every Monday, so the residents 
of Zapata are more than welcome to apply in person and stated that a staff member is 
there in the office. Chairman Ceballos stated that the wai ting list is minimum and asked 
whether the need was not there and how long had they been at the office since they 
went to Zapata. M s. Galva n respond ed that it had been two months and sa id that jf 
they had applicants, they would issue the vouchers at that moment because they have 
the vouchers available. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if he would provide them with 
the name of the person, if they would look into it. Chai rman Ceballos stated that that 
they cou ld since the person is a resident of Zapata and the vouchers belong in Zapata 
County. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that the person has been living in Zapata for a 
long time. Chairman Ceballos stated that they have used 30 vouchers out of the 118, so 
they have capacity. 

Ms. Gaona mentioned that the new persons that were hired in the month of June were 
Va leri a Ca bello who is the BiblioTech lab technician and three gentlemen that were 
hired temporarily for the Russell Terrace Project. 

In reference to Finance M s. Gaona mentioned that the audited financia ls for March, 
2017 were approved through REAC and staff was preparing for the March, 2018 audit, 
working on the financia ls from April through June and closeouts. M s. Gaona also 
mentioned that staff had interviewed and se lected a final applicant for Board approva l 
for the accountant position. 

In reference to the reorganization M s. Gaona stated that letters had been sent on May 
21, 2018 to the employees affected and t hey were given the opportunity to apply for 
alternate positions available within the agency and mentioned that vacant positions had 
been posted at t he same time and they were in the process of making final se lect ions. 
Ms. Gaona stated that staff evaluations had been performed and salary adjustments had 
been made where merited and goals were developed for several staff members. 
Chairman Ceballos asked is evaluations were 100% and if everyone was evaluated. Ms. 
Gaona confirmed. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they had an item that discusses the reorganization 
and stated that he would like to bring it up after the Executive Director's report. 

Vice-Chairman Or. Garza stated that he had a question in regards to th e financial audit 
being accepted that it was mentioned it was accepted by REAC, but it was not mentioned 
that it had been after the third revision submission and asked why after a third revi sion 
submiss ion and what had happened th at it took three times to submit the report. M s. 
Gaona mentioned that there were difficulties between the auditing firm and the REAC 
advisor that was approving; there were disagreements in the way items were being 
reported, so they were going back and forth and finally on the third time M s. Barr ientos 
advise them how it needed to be done. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked what had 
happened the second time that they did not do it, if they had refused to do it or whether 

4 



they had submitted the same report again and it got denied again . Chairman Ceballos 
asked M s. Gaona to give them an example, so there would be an understanding of what 
had happened and mentioned that it was unusual to have three revi sions. Ms. 
Barrientos stated that they would usually do the FDS reporting by line items. Chairman 
Ceballos asked her if she could describe what FDS was because he wanted to make sure 
they understood . Ms. Barrientos stated that it meant Financial Data Schedule reporting 
and what the auditors would do was put it under another line item, so they would ask 
from HUD why they had put it there and they would just give an explanation, so it would 
not change, but had an explanation why they put it where they f irst reported it, so there 
would be discrepancies when they reported to HUD and they would just change it, it 
was just clarifi cation or explanation on why they were doing it. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza 
stated t hat he thought it should not have to happen and stated that the first tim e they 
should have wanted to impress the people on what they were doing, but it had t aken 
three times and said that it was not Ms. Barri entos' fau lt and she should realize that. 
M s. Barrientos stated that she was not invo lved the fi rst time, it was until t he second 
t ime and third submission, so it was just reporting what the REAC auditor would see and 
wan ted clarification and said that maybe a number was reported in a different place 
than it should have been. Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked if it was done by lHA staff. 
M s. Barri entos responded that it cou ld have been lHA staff because they are the ones 
that would input it, but still they had to verify the information and they cou ld have sent 
it back advising that it was wrong. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was not usual 
to get rejected more than once and stated that the item would be coming up because 
they would be voting on renewing to do the next audit, so they would suggest that they 
update their REAC training and the noti fications on how to proceed if they would keep 
them and added that there were other things in finance that M s. Barrientos had been 
working through, M s. Gaona and others in the team related to the lack of clOSing of the 
books that the auditors would probably have a lot to say, but it also showed that they 
received information w ithout assuring that the accounting books had been closed 
proper ly fo r several or a coup le of years so there were other things that as of that date 
Chairman Ceballos had asked earlier whether they had balanced or had stili not 
balanced and stated that they needed to conclude that, so everything is in place, but 
the accounting in terms of how they classify expenses and where they were booked and 
stated that funding was obviously secured and in place and he would not want to 
mislead, but it has to do how they are posting that is not allowing them to balance and 
it needs to be concluded; if it would not be concluded, it would be an adjustment entry 
that would need to happen so they would be able to close the year and stated that it 
had been going on for so long trying to get to a solid closure. M s. Gaona mentioned t hat 
she had come into LHA in February and did not know what they were doing or if they 
knew they needed to do that. Chairman Ceballos stated that it was a good question and 
stated that to his experience three tries was too much and mentioned that it was not 
the staff's fault. 

Ms. Gaona ment ioned that in reference to Casa Verde as of June 29, 2018 they had 120 
unit s occupied, 14 already pre ·Ieased and 30 vacancies and in regards to Russell Terrace 
she stated that they were currently working on phase 1 which consisted of 21 duplexes 
with 42 units and it showed the percentage of completion in the packets. M s. Gaona 

5 



stated that on los Balcones t hey had a tentative dosing date, t hey would be d osing that 
day or Monday mornin g, so ttley would get that finalized quickly. In reference to the 
820 Price project , they were in the process of execut ing the architect's work 
authori za t ion to bring it for the Board's approval as far as the design. 

M s. Gaona stated that on th e BiblioTech MOU there had not been a change and 
ment ioned t hat t hey had a BiblioTech report in the packet . Chairman Ceballos asked if 
t hey had set a ten tative date for t he ribbon cutting ceremony at Cas a Verde. M s. Gaona 
ment ioned that they were considering August 7, 2018, but they t ried to confirm with 
M s. Nelly Vielma who had asked them to give her some time till Monday to confirm, so 
tentative ly t hey had it scheduled for August 7. Chairman Ceballos ment ioned t hat they 
would do a combined Casa Verde/BiblioTech grand opening type and stated that he 
would like for Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza and Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez, who are 
invo lved in educat ion, to actively parti cipate in the ceremony for BiblioTech in particu lar 
and maybe they would work with Alma and Monica in the planning of the ceremony. 
Chairman Ceba llos asked about the time for the ceremony. They mentioned it was 
scheduled at 10:00 a.m. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the hard work of getting 
services from thi rd party providers was st ill ongoing and they still had a lot of work to 
do to get it going, but at least in regards to the facility, he had asked if everything was 
in place and he was advised that it wa s, so he mentioned t hat it looks really nice for 
anybody that would be interested in going to take a look. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza 
stated that the sign looks really nice at night. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he wa nted to make a comment to the 
Commiss ioners on Russell Terrace about a story that ran in EI Manana newspaper about 
t he quality of Russell Terrace and stated that he had already mentioned before how it 
was superior not standard quality and said that they would be having a meeting w ith 
the tenants if not next week, it would be the following week and he believed that it 
might have been just two or three people that perhaps were not pleased w ith the 
relocation effort, so t hey had been doing updat es w ith the tenants and would cont inue 
updating them on relocation and construction and would have th e architect cover the 
items he described being superior t han standard and w ill t alk about fenCing and the dogs 
again and sa id that prior t o what ran in the paper and about the people that had been 
at those meetings he thought they had been very successful at the meetings and stated 
that they had brought back the pet policy and conceded on the dog deposit for elderly 
and disabled, but unfortunate ly what ran in the newspaper was very negative and for 
all that they had done for Russe ll Terrace Chairman Ceballos thought it was unfair what 
ran in t he newspaper, so he asked Ms. Gaona, Alma and Monica who are working on 
marketing to focus on a more proactive effort t o get our story out and stated that th ere 
were other people in the meeting that might need to hea r that Russell Terrace is being 
built to last decades using different construction material and stated that for those who 
knew const ruction or even if they did not, they are using 30-year roof and 2 X 10 rafters 
for the roof, also copper plumbing which today nobody puts copper anymore and it is 
high cost, not so much to t hem due to it being so many units and mentioned t hat it is 
plastic now what they use, somet hing ca lled PEX; they are also putting low maintenance 
tu bs forthe showers which are one piece and easy to maintain, the design includes more 

6 



windows than we probably have in our homes, the cabinets are prefab which are 
excell ent, great cabinets. Chairman Ceballos suggested they could ta lk to Fra nk l opez if 
they had time after the meeting about how they put quality in it. The timeframe had an 
illusion that was de layed, but actuall y t hey set their own timeframe for the project and 
the cont racto r set hi s own timeline and they were a little bit behind because t hey have 
quality control an d they have an inspector looking at quality and sa id to rest assured 
that th e qua lity wi ll be there, so he li sted all those items and will show the te nan ts what 
a standard house gets, a 20 yea r composite shingle roof, and what they will be getting 
and the last thing was tha t they will do a com parison. He also mentioned that those are 
rental units, no longer public housing, they are section 8 units, so the tenants will have 
to start understanding that and stated that he had been saying that at every meeting 
and he thought more needed to be said by others in the Agency wit h the politeness and 
everything that should come with t he way they would treat anybody they deal wit h, so 
they need to be clea r and mentioned that the fencing had come up and res idents wo uld 
like to see the fencing the way it was before, but he will not support any change that 
deals with fencing the way it was before and stat ed t hat those units, including public 
housing were not meant to be permanent housing and thinks that conseque nt ly people 
stay because they had promoted t he idea that fo lks can stay fo rever; some shou ld stay 
as long as they need to get back up, whether it would be due to a job, a divorce, or 
whatever cha ll enge and the e lde rly and disabled can stay as lo ng as t hey desire and 
stated that it is what the program is for, but in fairness, he wanted to make sure that 
they were aware and at least hear the side ofthe staff t hat has been meeting with them. 

In regards to re location Chairm an Ceba ll os stat ed that they have some body ded icated 
just to re locating them and are accommodating them as best as t hey can which was 
what t hey had to do for some to preserve them in their schools and the community and 
said that he would take any questions anybody might have . The reason t hey had met 
the last t ime was because the residents saw Chairman Ceballos at the construction site 
and they asked him for a special meeting with him and two people t hat were the re at 
t he meeting, maybe just one that left early, might have been the person t hat was 
mentioned in the newspaper, so she left early because there were many people aski ng 
hi m questions and he was trying to answer their questions and mentioned that the re 
are people that have four dogs or th ree dogs, way too many dogs, an d what he sa id at 
the meeting and asked that anybody present that was at the meet ing t o feel 
comfortab le to come to the microphone and chat with t he Board and stated that what 
they had sa id at that meeting was that they wou ld accommodate them and ment ioned 
that there was somebody tha t has an auti stic child and at first she was a little 
apprehensive about what she was hearing and then Chairman Ceballos sa id they could 
bu il d a kennel for them so that the child does not go through the struggle; they will not 
build a ken nel for everybody, but in that case it was ve ry reasonable because the child 
had grown accustomed to having a pet, so they should accommodate them. They also 
talked about defining what the ken nel would look like and mentioned that they would 
not build a kennel fo r four dogs, they have to be reasonable and in fai rness he wants to 
make sure that when they read ~hose stories, they will also need to get thei r story out, 
they would also talk to the folks that had been meeting with the staff . The one lady that 
left th e meeting, unfortunately was unhappy, she has four dogs, so she has that to dea l 

7 



with and they need to engage so that they would start add ressing their issues because 
grievances would be difficult to mai1;:jge if they are not brought to the people that can 
help, so they will have another meeting and will go through t he different topics. 

Chai rman Ceba llos mentioned he thought they had an excellent meeting, but 
unfortunate ly one or two people di sagreed and stated that some people applauded 
when they were talking about putting some structure to fen cing and to pets which is 
always a sensitive topic, but unfortunately they need to have parameters. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if there were any questions or comments. Ms. Gaona mentioned that 
the only th ing he had not touched base was about the Engli sh/S panish part of the 
meetings and said that the majority ofthe meeting was conducted in Spanish. Chairman 
Ceballos stated he thought he had mentioned that in an e-mail and said that they 
translate in the meetings and they double in length and try to run the meetings as 
bi lingual as possible wh ich had always been the case, so when anybody would say that 
he runs the meetings in English, it wou ld be completely not true, they make every effort 
to accommodate and mentioned that Spanish is his first language, so that would not be 
the issue and stated that the particular meeting was bilingual. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked about the closing for Los Balcones. Ms. Gaona 
mentioned that they were going to close that day, but not all the paperwork was 
submitted; therefore, they would for sure close by the following Monday. Chairman 
Ceballos stated that there was a legal issue that had come up for the se ller. Ms. Mata 
mentioned that there were some liens on the property which wou ld be cleared and they 
were doing some edits that were requested on the paper work, so they would be able 
to close on Monday. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to bring Items 9K and 9L up for consideration together in case 
they would need to go to executive session he would like to take both items together 
and mentioned that the items were to address any questions they might have that might 
need clarificat ion and asked Ms. Gaona to provide an update on item 9K as to where 
they were in the reorganization and then to address any questions. 

Ms. Gaona stated that as she had mentioned earlier on the reorganization, letters had 
been mailed, staff had been reshuffled, property managers had been moved around, 
some maintenance staff had been changed from different properti es, Mr. Vidaurri and 
hi s staff were in the process of hiring any resource center coordinators, property 
managers and maintenance staff . In the Finance Department they had lost the 
accountant and were in the process of fillin g that position, for the Director of Economic 
Development position they have lhree app licants and would be reviewing them with 
the Comm iss ioners. 

Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that he had asked Ms. Gaona to bring both job 
descriptions for the after sch(lol coordinators and asked if she would describe for the 
after school coordinators, for the record, since it had caught the media , what was the 
difference between the prior job description and the current job description. 
Ms. Gaona responded that the main difference was on the site based services, they 

8 



would be conducting more educational programs and the init iative was to try to bring 
all the programs they currently offer in the BiblioTech area to come to the sites for the 
children to be able to benefit from all those programs. In the prior job description it was 
a lot more of just the feeding services, the meal plans, the recruitments for the Kids Cafe 
program, so they had gone away from more of the educational programs, so that was 
the change from the old job description to the new one. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the department went from Special Projects 
department to Property Management site. Ms. Gaona confirmed. Chairman Ceballos 
stated that it was part of the minutes that he went back and read and mentioned that 
the idea had originated from him which was to increa se the enrichment activiti es at 
the halls and not just feeding them because they have computers that they can put to 
use, so in reference of what ran in the media and the newspaper, Chairman Ceballos 
stated that he was interviewed and he cla rifi ed the situation as best as he could, so on 
the language aspect , both descriptions say bilingual, so for Chairman Ceba llos it is not 
necessarily a language issue, but the fact that if they wou ld assist someone that is going 
to school, they need to have certain level of proficiency and they have staff that might 
not have that level of proficiency, but the one thing that was very striking was that when 
the media report came, actually a group went to the Mayor accompanied by a former 
Chairman of the Housing Authority and Chairman Ceballos did not receive a request to 
meet nor M s. Gaona received a request to meet, so it was a month after the letter that 
it was a language issue, but it was not a language issue, it was a restructure th at changed 
the scope of work for people and th e requirements and mentioned that what was 
stri king to him was t hat no one of th e after school centers had applied a month in, so 
how would they even begin addressing someone's sk ills, abilities, educational record or 
interest to make themselves better at a job; how would they address a grievance if they 
had not received one, so he mentioned that it was important to set the record stra ight 
and stated that after the story ran a few people applied and M s. Gaona could share with 
them when that occurred, but ultimately none of the Commissioners would hire in that 
level , it would end up being a recommendation from Mr. Vidaurri to the Director and if 
the staff th ink that those coordinators can do the job, they have a job description and if 
they decide they can do the job, all he would ask wou ld be for them to make sure that 
they fulfill the job so that they wou ld not be dealing with issues later w ith not being able 
to assist with homework later and said that the system being insta lled in the BiblioTech 
is a little more sophisticated t han the traditional computer lab, it has resource libraries 
and other things, but nothing said that it will happen immediately, it would take time 
for it to happen. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that what did not seem logic or fa ir was that the 
grievances were not being addressed with them or wi th the Director and that the minute 
they would apply they cou ld say th ey wou ld want to keep the job and could ask what 
they cou ld do in order to keep the job and the answer wou ld have been that actually 
their job no longer existed, but there is this other job that essentially is the same 
function plus this other and the director would begin to work with them at an individual 
leve l to see if that could even happen, but to not provide the opportunity and go public 
is not a good course to take, so he stated that those were his comments and asked if 

9 



there were any questions beyond getting into individual people or positions because if 
they would do that they would have to do it in executive sess ion and he just wanted to 
provide that background. 

Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza asked who would help Mr. Vidaurri with interviewing the 
applicants when they apply, if it wou ld be only one person or a committee of at least 
three persons. 

Rafael Vidaurri , Director of Housing Management, mentioned that it had been both 
himself and Jessica Martinez who had been conducting the interviews and going through 
the applications and mentioned that Ms. Martinez was not present at the meeting. 
Chairman Ceballos asked if he would then make a recommendation to Ms. Gaona and if 
it was in writ ing. Mr. Vidaurri confirmed. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if after 
interviewing there would be a tie, who would break th e tie, if they had the same amount 
of points at the interview, how would they choose one person over the other. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if they had consensus all the time. Mr. Vidaurri confirmed. 
Commissioner Ms. Guerra asked if they had a set of questions. Mr. Vidaurri responded 
that they had a set of questions and they also looked at experience and education. 
Chairman Ceballos asked how they would handle a tie if it would happen, if he would go 
to the Director or what would he do. Mr. Vidaurri responded that in that case he would 
go to the Director fo r a third opinion. Chairman Ceballos asked M s. Gaona what the 
policy ultimately sa id about addressing a recommendation. Ms. Gaona respond ed that 
she would review and decide if she would need to do a final interview. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if the policy sa id she would do the hiring. M s. Gaona confirmed. 
Chairman Ceballos stated that ultimately it would lay w ith M s. Gaona and if she would 
disagree w ith the recommendation she would ultimately be the one to hire. Vice­
Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned that wi th all due respect, he fe lt that if there would be 
tie, Ms. Gaona must interview both persons because how would she make a decision if 
would not see or hear them . Chairman Ceballos asked how many of the persons in the 
after school program that had been impacted had applied and how many had been 
interviewed. Mr. Vidaurri responded that three had applied, but two had been 
interviewed. Ms. Gaona stated that there had been at least 6 persons that had applied. 
Mr. Vidau rri mentioned that out of those they had interviewed two. Chairman Ceballos 
asked if they had considered the rest of those who had applied . Ms. Gaona mentioned 
that from the first group Mr. Vidaurri had already made his se lect ion to interview and 
those applicants had not applied yet, there had only been one, so t hey would be in the 
second round that Mr. Vidaurri will probably se lect because he had already started 
doing his interviews. 

Alma Mata, Director of Community and Economic Development, stated that she wanted 
to clarify Jessica Ma rtinez' role in interviewing and sa id that M s. Martinez was only 
looking at applicants based on the fact that she is developing the program beca use she 
has helped develop the program fo r BiblioTech which wil l be implemented at the 
resource centers, however, Mr. Vidaurri is involved in the interviews as well because the 
people that wi ll be employed will report t o the AMP Managers. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza 
asked what she meant when she said Ms. Martinez im plemented the program. Ms. 

10 



Mata responded that Ms. Martinez is developing in conjunction w ith M r. Vidaurri the 
program that w ill take place at ~ach of the different sites to include BiblioTech. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that Ms. Martinez would develop programming for each 
of the sites, but that person reports to the site manager, so she might do the scheduling 
of activities or assisting but the implementation would happen at the sites. Vice· 
Chairman Dr. Garza stated that he was not happy with it . Cha irman Ceballos asked him 
what he wou ld like. Vice·Chairman Dr. Garza stated that he wou ld discuss it privately in 
executive session. 

Jennifer Barrientos, Interim Finance Directo r, mentioned that in the organizational chart 
Ms. Martinez role is the coordinator for the program and will provide materials and 
programs to be used at the resource centers, so she would be the person giving the 
curriculum to the resource center coordinators, but the Managers will also be in charge 
of that property. Vice·Chairm an Dr. Garza explain ed where he was coming from by 
giving an example as if Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez wou ld be the Dean and his boss, 
who would say that she would want him to teach a particular curricu lum, but she knows 
he has the expertise in the particular area, she would not have him teach biology when 
she knows his expertise is bilingual education, so his concern was whether they really 
know what they would be recommending, the training and the expertise in the 
particular area. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez mentioned that with any reorganization, in her experience 
being a worker for 18 to 20 years of her life, that the important thing to let the publ ic 
know was that with whatever agency, whether it wou ld be public or private, there is 
always a mission and a purpose of what the agency adheres to and with that there is 
also a strategic plan as fa r as how to adhere to that mission, so when initiatives are 
created or ideas are generated to meet more of that mission, that is where 
reorganization occurs and it is not a negative thing, sometimes st ructure needs to be 
adjusted so that the right players would be in the right unit and make sure that the 
mission is followed through and as Chairman Ceballos said, sometimes the players do 
not have the st rengths anymore due to the new initiative, but it does not mean to do 
away complete ly with those employees, but to find out what their strengths are and if 
their strengths fall into another unit then that is where those people should go or not, 
but unfortunately when people do not meet the qualifications, when units have a 
different priority, and mentioned that she would imagine there are job descriptions, so 
they just need to make sure that the employees do follow or meet the job descripti ons 
regardless of the qualifications or whatever is preferred or required out of those job 
descriptions and then they would just make sure that those applicants meet those 
expectations so that the unit works productively and efficient ly and again it goes back 
to the mission making sure that those job descriptions are followed through with what 
the initiative is to make sure that the mission is completed. 

Jose Collazo, Special Projects Coordinator, mentioned that he wanted to clarify two 
things: First of all that the policies state that they do not have to, but they can hire 
residents with lower qualifications for the job and said that he had been working w ith 
Housing for 20 years with different site coordinators and they had closed about five or 

II 



six grants and stated that Chairman Ceballos knew how many grants he had closed for 
him w ithout any problems and gave an example, an old case and sta ted that they could 
ask SCAN, TAMIU or Mr. Gonzalez how they had helped kids do their sc ience projects, 
they had cases of domest ic violence and even child protective services too and stated 
that he was not saying educat ion was bad, but it could be added like they would add 
curtains, tables and other things. He also mentioned that he had always been very 
truthful and did not like for people to lie and stated that when they had sa id that 100% 
of the people had been evaluated, he said not a 100% people had been evaluated for a 
raise and said that they were not treated ri ght, that posting had to be made for 
employment and they had hired three persons the same day, they did the application 
and there was no opportunity to get hired and asked if he was wrong. Chairman 
Ceballos asked about what and sa id Mr. Collazo was wrong about several things, but 
would let him fin ish. Mr. Collazo asked if he had ever been a bad employee. Chairman 
Ceballos responded that he was not going to evaluate him in front of everybody, that it 
was something t hey could not do and that as the Board it was not their funct ion . Mr. 
Collazo mentioned that Commissioner Marcela Alvarez had left more than four months 
before and had made a resignation letter and they still say that they have not contacted 
her and said that it was bad. He sa id they had it bad before and he was hoping that it 
would be a good thing for them and stated that he was not asking to get his job back, 
he just wanted them to see his point. He said in reference to the employees he had and 
who are res idents, for one of them it was the first job she had and was evaluated and 
that employee had grown as Mr. Collazo did too and said that he grew in his job because 
he was a resident and at that time he would not have been able to come to the front 
and talk to them and stated that M s. Gaona and Chairman Ceballos knew how he 
worked, another lady employee had been through depression and now she was good 
because that was the point of the program, a cycle, being a resident, getting to work, 
pay rent and said that most of them were already out of housing and had bought a 
house, just as he did and he thanked them for it . Mr. Collazo said that it was the program 
and they could add to it because at the beginning there were only four computers, no 
Kids Cafe, no services, but they added and added and now they have ESL classes and get 
them books and they also have tutoring and sa id that he had proof. Mr. Collazo asked 
Chairman Ceballos if he had ever gone to any of the sites by himself and talked to the 
ch ildren and said that it was very sad and he thanked them. 

Chairman Ceballos thanked Mr. Co llazo for his comments and asked if anybody had any 
additional comments and mentioned that there w ill obviously be a change in what the 
program w ill do and he would not necessa rily clarify everything that was stated and 
t here were somethings that were obviously not accurate including the allusion to the 
Commissioner, but the program evolves and one thing was correct , at its origin, the 
program was a grand fathered grant to help develop residents and that mission does not 
change, t hey still have that opportunity that residents can come in and develop and he 
went back to what was very revealing too about where the grievance st arted and 
referenced as to how they would begin if somebody would come to them and would say 
what they would need to do to keep their job, that 30 days out, did not occur and to 
Chairman Ceballos the opportunity was provided and it was not being channeled 
because there was an assumption in some of the statements that were made that there 

12 



was now something different that they should add on and stated t hat t hey were always 
adding on which is a natural occurrence in every program, but to th ink that they would 
keep it at a certain level because they have certain employees, the Board had decided 
that it would not be the case, they will continue to add and in fact BiblioTech is an add 
on and is a good model that has its gaps and deficiencies too, that needs to be analyzed, 
but digital library was not something they were doing eight or ten years ago, it is 
something new, but the first thing is when they are trying to be resourceful would be to 
go to the folks that can help you and to him the staff lost 30 good days because it got in 
the media and actua lly there were more applicants that came in and there was probably 
more interest in the jobs because they are paying more; it was something they added, 
now they are paying $12.00 an hour and he asked how much they were being paid 
before, if it was minimum wage. Ms. Gaona mentioned it was $8.50 an hour before. 
Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was $3.50 more, so they are always adding on and 
the idea that somehow they would be sacrificing opportunities for tenants is not so, it 
is st ill present and Mr. Co ll azo was not provided an opportunity to address somebody's 
interest, actually that day was probably an opportunity, but he knows Ms. Gaona was 
not provided and opportu nity and when he first learned about the Mayor meeting with 
a group of people that were disgruntled about the language issue he asked Ms. Gaona 
if any had talked to her or had gone in to see her and Ms. Gaona to ld him no. Vice­
Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned that it was in the news and he got a phone ca ll that night. 

Mr. Co ll azo mentioned that they were saying they had not talked to Ms. Gaona and 
stated that first it began with the December party when Chai rma n Ceba llos approach ed 
their table and talked to them in English and stated that they get intimidated when they 
see Chai rman Ceballos and they did not answer and then Chairman Ceballos walked up 
to Melissa Ortiz and stated that they did not speak English. Mr. Co llazo stated that he 
went to Ms. Gaona office when she ca lled him and she had asked him: Jose, cuales son 
los que hab lan Ingles and he asked Ms. Gaona if it was true. Ms. Gaona responded that 
yes, it was when they were working on the new job descriptions. Chairman Ceballos 
instructed Mr. Collazo not to ask any questions to anybody, to just make his comments 
so they could be cordial to each other. Mr. Collazo stated that how would the site 
coordinators would go if later on they had a meeting with all his staff and they were 
informed of the qualifications and were being told you need this and this to qualify. 
Chairman Ceba llos asked if he was speaking for them and if he encou rage them not to 
come and apply. Mr. Collazo responded that he was speaking because of what he was 
hearing was going on at the meeting and stated that Chairman Ceballos knew who Mr. 
Collazo was, that he did not like to lie to the public and does not li ke to be in the middle 
of anything and said that he had attended all the events and that there were a lot of 
pictures of all the events, but he does not come out in the pictures. Chairman Ceba ll os 
stated that the best advice the staff could have received was to engage imm ediate ly 
once t hey got the letter. Mr. Collazo asked with whom. Chairman Ceba llos stated that 
it would have been with Human Resources. Chairman Ceba llos stated that they would 
not be getting into an agreement and he did not want to engage and for Mr. Collazo to 
wrap up his comments. Mr. Collazo mentioned that he had requested a letter of 
recommendation and a copy of hi s fi le on June 6 and there was no response to his e­
mail which he had sent to Ms. Gaona and to his supervisor, Mr. Vidaurri who never 

13 



responded. Chairman Ceballos asked if Mr. Collazo was still an employee. Mr. Collazo 
responded that he was. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he was su re he would get a 
copy of whatever would be permissible. Mr. Collazo mentioned he had to request it 
through public records and mentioned that he had been working for 21 years and 
thought they should have responded to his e-mails to just say they would give him a 
letter or not, anything, just to respond to his e-mai l and added that he had never 
disrespected Chairman Ceballos nor M s. Gaona and stated that if Chairman Ceballos 
would ca ll him at any time, he would answer and if Ms. Gaona or anybody would e-mail 
him, he would answer right away and stated that it was very bad and that it was the way 
he was being rewarded and said that it was a simple request for a letter of 
recommendation, then he thanked Chairman Ceballos. Chairman Ceballos thanked Mr. 
Collazo for his comments. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that he had a question and referred to Mr. Collazo 
mentioning about ESl classes and asked what type of curricu lum they had for the ESl 
classes. Mr. Collazo responded that they had classes from 8 in the morning to 12 noon 
on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays and another cla ss on Tuesdays and Thursdays 
and sa id that the room was always occupied by ESl classes and when the room was 
remodeled, they lost a lot of students, so they moved the ESl classes to the Ana Maria 
lozano project where classes were sti ll going on and stated that lCC was providing the 
ESl classes. Mr. Collazo mentioned that he had just provided an MOU for lCC on 
Monday of that week and to date he had not received a response and stated that four 
or five months ago he had provided an MOU for the Central Resident Council for 
residen ts participation which is required by the auditors and was supposed to be signed 
by Ms. Gaona in March or the latest in April ; he had given it to Mr. Rafael Vidaurri, but 
there was no answer. Mr. Collazo stated that he had always followed procedures and 
at times when there were events and they were not invited, he went by the chain of 
command, but it fell on him because he organized the event, but had to go by the chain 
of command and sa id that if they would not see him at their office there was nothing he 
could do. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if the ESl classes when they first started in that building 
were with the curriculum offered by lCC and also asked if they had sign-in sheets to 
prove that people had attended the ESl classes. Mr. Collazo confirmed and mentioned 
they had an MOU w ith l CC and they also had ESl classes at Meadow, Russell and South 
laredo. Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez asked who they were dealing with in l Ce for the 
ESl classes. Mr. Collazo responded that it was with Ms. Morales and when M s. Morales 
left it was Ms. Sanchez and stated that there was currently an MOU and added that 
anything that would be requested from him, his department had worked on it, they 
would work on setting up for events or meetings in the community halls, setting up and 
removing chairs as needed, they would do what others do not want to do and at the end 
of the events, they would put everything away and stated that on a Senior Citizens 
proclamat ion event, he asked Ms. Gaona, but it was late and she sent Mr. Vidaurri, Mr. 
Collazo stated that he gave Mr. Vidaurri his place and stated that he did not get in the 
picture because first of all because he was not in agreement w ith the picture for it was 
senior citizens day and if they were to see the picture, they would see no senior citizens 

14 



in the picture, so that is what Mr. Collazo sees in the picture. He also mentioned that 
when they invited ch ildren and res ident councils to some events, they would come out 
in the pictures, but are not invited to dinner and Mr. Collazo would take the children 
home and to Chick-Fil -A because they would not be invited to partic ipate during the 
dinner, so he would always solve those problems for administration to look good and 
sa id that he always protected administration and stated that his loyalty wou ld always 
be to the person in charge at lHA. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza thanked Mr. Collazo. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to go into executive sess ion to discuss specific staffing issues 
under Item K and also discuss Item l Discussion and possib le action re lated to any 
management positions and hiring recommendations by the Execut ive Director. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to go into executive session. 
Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Chairman Ceballos stated for the record that he would like fo r the attorneys and Ms. 
Gaona to go in and Mr. Vidaurri would go in after they comment. 

Commissioners went into Executive Session at 4:17 p.m. 

Commiss ioners reconvened from Executive Session at 5:32 p.m. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that there was no action taken in executive session. 

In reference to Item K as it relates to the site-based management reorgan ization and 
related staffing Chairman Ceballos moved that staff would con tinue to fill the resource 
center coordinators and asked M s. Rios if she had something to add and M s. Rios 
mentioned t hat what she had in mind had already been covered by Mr. Collazo. 

Chairm an Ceballos stated that he wou ld make a motion that staff continue to fill the 
resource center coord inators with the best qualified candidates as described in the job 
description and that they would also allow for an additional period of transition, without 
the promise of a job, for six positions to assist the resource center coord inators with the 
condition that they agree to further their education through an ESl adult basic 
education initiative program as well as No.2 a computer literacy program or class to be 
developed by th e Execut ive Director and the last thing would be to also conn ect them 
w ith the workforce department in the event that they would find placement and also to 
further develop themselves through the workforce and an example of that would be if 
they had somebody that perhaps would just need a little help in terms of language 
proficiency t hat Mr. Vidaurri and others would work with the group to actually receive 
some assistance from fo lks that do it every day along with an instructor that would help 
them and if they wou ld put time in with workforce to get an opportunity to move ahead, 
so for that period it would be an additional four months or a tota l of six months from 
the date of t hei r not ice and it would only be for six positions in the afterschool program. 

15 



Chairman Ceballos asked if there were any additional comments o r questions and also 
asked M s. Gaona if she had all that . M s. Gaona con firmed. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve Item K as discussed . 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

On Item l discussion and possible action related to any management position hiring 
recommendat ion by t he Executive Director requiring Board consultation . Chairman 
Ceballos asked Ms. Gaona to make her recommendation. Ms. Gaona stated that fo r the 
accounting position, t hey were recommending Brandon Reyes. Chairman Ceballos 
asked if there was motion to approve. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Ga rza moved to approve M s. Gaona's recommendation. 

Chairman Ceba llos asked M s. Barrientos if she had any comments to make because it 
was her department and stated that he knew she was involved in the interview process. 
M s. Barrientos, Interim Finance Director, stated that they had interviewed M r. Reyes, a 
f irst interview was w ith some members of the Finance Department and a second 
interview was with Ms. Gaona . Chairman Ceballos asked if Ms. Barri entos felt good with 
t he selection. Ms. Barrientos confirmed. Chairman Ceballos stated t hat for M s. 
Barrientos' knowledge, he had been pressuring M s. Gaona to kind of help her so that 
they wou ld have more capacity in the department and hopefully she would und erstand 
why he would do it and also would encourage them to help themselves in filli ng the 
positions and wished her and Mr. Reyes good luck in carrying ou t the dut ies of the 
department. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza moved to approve Ms. Gaona's recommendation. 
Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Chairman Ceba llos stated that they would go back t o Item 9A. 

9. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Discussion and possible act ion relating to the Project Based-Voucher contract w ith 
NeighborWorks laredo, its t erms, and contract period. 

Chairman Ceballos stat ed t hat he would abst ain himselffrom this item and asked Vice­
Chairman Dr. Garza to proceed w ith leading on thi s item. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza moved to award the Project Based-Voucher contract to 
NeighborWorks w ith its terms and contract period. 
Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez seconded the motion. 
Motion passed. 
Chairman Ceballos abstained. 

16 



Attorney Poneck asked if he would be allowed to do clarification in reference to the item 
on the reorganization. Chairman Ceballos confi rmed. Mr. Poneck mentioned that there 
was a misunderstanding about having to do evaluations in anticipation of doing a 
reorganizat ion and stated that they did not have to do evaluations, that it would not be 
a performance based decision, they wou ld essentially be looking at what programs they 
would have and what would make sense for the organization and said that it was not 
about whether somebody had done a good job or not; it was more of whether it would 
make sense the way it is structured and he wanted to put it on the record for them and 
the other issue was about recommendation letters that many folks would think that 
when they are leaving they should get a recommendation letter from the employer, but 
unfortunately there is always a risk for employers that if they were to issue 
recommendation letters that they would be accused of engaging in unlawful favoritism 
or discrimination by either doing it for some employees and not for others or describing 
things frankly that the departing employee would feel inaccurate, so out of caution, 
employers are advised, very generally, to just issue what is called letters of service or 
some neutral letter that basically tells the next employer that the person worked for the 
organization from this date to this date and the positions the person held w ithout 
making a value judgement or statement regarding the employee which would be done 
as a precaution against someone thinking there would be a motive on how the letter 
would be written and stated that he wanted to put it on the record because there was 
a lot of stuff being said and he wanted to make sure at least that the community would 
know. Chairman Ceba llos stated that he agreed with Mr. Poneck. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that he wanted to speak about what was said at the podium 
over the staffing being evaluated 100% or not 100% and asked Ms. Gaona to please 
clarify it for the record. Ms. Gaona stated that she wanted to clarify for the record that 
the people that were affected by the reorg were not evaluated due to the reorg; 
everybody else that would get the merit increase or go through the evaluation was 
evaluated, but people affected with the reorg had not or new positions had not been 
evaluated. Attorney Poneck mentioned that when they do the reorg, they do not have 
to evaluate those employees. 

B. Discussion and possible action clarifying and ratifying the action taken on September 20, 
2017 to include assistance for secu rity deposits and for current ly homeless clients being 
newly admitted into and assisted by the l ow Income Public Housing Program. 

Jennifer Barrientos, Interim Finance Director, presented to the Board and stated that on 
September 20, 2017 she had come before the Board for the Section 8 department asking 
for help for the homeless referrals they had with MOUs from participating cert ified 
agencies and the Board approved the item she presented and would want to ratify it to 
include the security deposit and to include also for people being admitted to Public 
Housing program and mentioned that they still had the $15,000.00 per year available 
each September and as of the date of the meeting they had spent $11,000.00. Chairman 
Ceballos mentioned that he thought they had brought it back for deposits. M s. 
Barrientos responded that they had not brought the item back and that it was only for 

17 



utility deposits, so it would now include Public Housing and they would share the 
$15,000.00 per year. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the budget would stay the 
same, that they would just expand it to include Public Housing and security deposits. 
Ms. Barrientos confi rmed and Chairman Ceballos asked if there were any questions. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve item 98 as presented. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

C. Discussion and possib le action to approve a one-year extension to Garza/Gonzalez & 
Associates to conduct the Independent Audit Services for Fiscal Year ending March 31, 
2018. 

Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they had discussed this item earlier and they had 
some concerns that the auditor is struggling to meet the certifications obviously as 
evidenced by needing three tries and stated that because of timing he would motion 
and said that he believed they could do good work, but they had some concerns over 
that, so he would make a motion to approve the request to continue. Vice-Chairman 
Dr. Garza stated that he would like to add that they would give the Executive Director 
the right to put out an RFQ and recommend someone that would be consistent with the 
policies that need to be fo llowed and adhered to for the future. Chairman Ceballos 
mentioned that he was sure they had the ability to do it either they get training or not 
and asked M s. Gaona when they would post the RFQ in order to get ahead of next year 
audit . M s. Gaona respond ed that they would need to post in the next month or so in 
order to have a decision by the end of the yea r. 

Chairman Ceballos recommended that the RFQ would have something explicit to have 
engaged over the track record, so they would compare with the staff when they get the 
proposa ls and asked ifit was an amendment, if Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza wanted to make 
it part of the motion. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza confirmed, so Chai rman Ceba llos stated 
that he would accept it as part of the motion . Comm issioner Dr. Rodriguez asked if they 
could repeat the motion. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that the motion was to 
approve a one-year extension to carry out the audit for fiscal year ending March 31, 
2018, but the amendment would be to also include authoriz ing the Executive Director 
to initiate an RFQ process as soon as possible to procure the next year's auditing firm. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve Item 9C as amended. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza ment ioned that he was curious about the background in 
regards to the charges, for 2018 it stated $84,000.00 and asked if it was the amount they 
would be charging. Ms. Gaona stated that it was the estimate, so Vice-Chairman Dr. 
Garza said that how it could be if in 2017 they had charged $105,603.00 and in 2016 it 
was $108,050.00, so they went down by $3,000.00 and he did not t hink they would go 
down by such a huge amount. Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Barrientos if she would 

18 



explain it and stated that he thought they had been given additional work. M s. 
Barrientos mentioned that they had been given addit ional work and sa id that it was also 
based on the hours they would put in and stated that they would provide an invoice 
stating the amount of hours and what they worked on. Chairman Ceballos asked M s. 
Barrientos just to report back to Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza why the difference because 
he remembered they were given additional work and to please just confirm it. M s. 
Barrientos stated that she had the documentation and could show it to Vice-Chairman 
Dr. Garza at the end of the meeting. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza mentioned it would be 
fin e. Chairman Ceballos stated that it was probably higher than the previous auditor. 
Ms. Gaona confirmed. Ms. Barrientos stated that they would keep an eye on the hours. 
Chairman Ceballos mentioned that they had given the auditors a couple of additional 
tasks and just wanted Ms. Barrientos to con firm it. 

D. Discuss ion and possible action to adopt and implement the Smoke-Free Public Housing 
Pol icy and Smoke-Free lease Revision Effective July 30, 2018 and adopt Resolution No. 
18-R-ll. 

Rafael Vidaurri III , Director Housing Management, presented to the Board and stated 
that they were at the last stage with regards to the adoption of the policy and mentioned 
that some of the main points on the item were that it would apply to the tenants, 
visitors, guest s, employees as well as contractors, so it would be for everyone and 
smoking will be prohibited within all common areas within 2S ft . of any structure as we ll 
as inside any dwellings or any lHA bui lding and it will also include electronic cigarettes 
as well , not just the regular cigarettes. Chairman Ceballos asked if there was a lease 
addendum. Mr. Vidaurri confirmed that it wou ld include a lease addendum and for the 
new tenants coming in it would be signed immediately and for the exist ing tenants it 
would be a 60-day time frame for them to visit w ith the project manager to sign it. 

Chairman Ceballos asked if he could make sure it would be added to the Russell Terrace 
agenda. Mr. Vidaurri confirmed and stated that with regards to some major dates they 
followed, back in February they had distributed surveys to all the tenant s, each 
individual house had received a survey saying that it was coming and they got some 
feedback and they met with people from the State Department of Health Services who 
gave them some advice w ith regards to implementation. During February, Mr. Vidaurri 
and some staff attended all the resident council meetings to advise them that it was 
coming and on May 20, 2018 they advised that the actual smoke free policy and the 
addendum was available for their review and inspection and all households got it . On 
June 28, 2018 all managers attended a workshop that was done on lin e w ith the 
University of Texas at EI Paso for implementation as well as enforcement and after that 
they were ready to go, they just needed approval from the Board to get it started July 
31 and stated that they were in full compliance with all the dates and deadlines. 

Commiss ioner Dr. Rodriguez asked if t hey would post any signs in the properties. Mr. 
Vidaurri stated that it was a good question and said that he had a sample of th e signs 
they plan to purchase because they would need to post and it would be in English and 

19 



Spanish which provides the description of the 25ft ., so they would be purchasing the 
signs pretty soon . Chairman Ceballos asked if there was a motion to approve. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to approve Item 90. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

E. Discussion and possible action to award RFP No. lHA2018_0323_1HQS Housing 
Inspection Services, and authorize the Executive Director to finalize negotiations and 
contract with t he recommended proposer. 

M s. Gaona presented to the Board and mentioned they had bids from Bortex which are 
for inspections Section 8 staff can not do, so he is cert ified and the only respondent to 
this item. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he wou ld abstain from the item because 
he would usually use him as an inspector too. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza asked if they 
were ready to motion. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he had some comments but 
he would not be able to make them. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza motion to award Item 9E to Bortex the only proposer. 
Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez seconded the motion. 
Motion passed. 
Chairman Ceballos abstained. 

F. Discuss ion and possible action to award RFP No. LHA2017 _1217 _1, On-Call professional 
Construction Inspection Services, and authorize the Executive Director to finalize any 
negotiations and contract with the top evaluated proposer or proposers. 

M s. Gaona presented to the Board and mentioned that they were bringing the item back 
for the reason that sometimes they would want to be able to negotiate with Do-Rite 
Inspection Services being that sometimes Bortex would not be available, so they would 
like to be able to negotiate with them to be able to have the inspections at the 
construction site. Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that he would also abstain from this 
item as well. Attorney Po neck mentioned that they wou ld have access to two proposers. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza moved to approve Item 9F and add Do-Rite. 
Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez seconded the motion. 
Motion passed. 
Chairman Ceballos abstained. 

G. Discussion and possible action to award RFP No. 180423-3 Qualified Professional 
Consultants, and authorize the Executive Director to finalize negotiations and contract 
with the top recommended fi rms. 

M s. Gaona presented to the Board and stated that staff was recommending to go with 
True Cas a Consulting for grant writing services. Chairman Ceba llos asked if they were 

20 



only doing grant writing services or if they were also doing other housing development 
consulting. Ms. Gaona responded that it would be another item. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to approve Item 9G as recommended. Chairman 
Ceballos mentioned that he was part of their interview and stated that he was very 
happy with their expertise and sa id that they actua lly have a socia l service background 
and stated that he thought they would do a good job and added that he would second 
Commissioner Dr. Rod riguez' motion and asked if there was any additional discussion. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to approve Item 9G as recommended by staff. 
Chairman Ceballos seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

H. Discussion and possible action to award RFQ No. 180423·4 Qualified Professional 
Technical Consu ltants, and au thorize the Executive Director to finalize negotiat ions and 
contract w ith the top recommended firm for each technical area of concent ration. 

Ms. Gaona presented to the Board and mentioned that for Qualified Professional 
Technical Consultants, for Civil Engineering, staff was recommending for the Board of 
Commissioners to authorize to negotiate with CEC Civil Engineering w ith the intention 
to reach an agreement that would be fair and reasonable to both parties. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if it wou ld be sepa rate from surveying. Ms. Gaona confirmed. Chairman 
Ceballos asked if there were any questions. Ms. Gaona asked if they could also add the 
land surveying. Chairman Ceballos asked if they wou ld recommend the same firm. M s. 
Gaona confirmed. Chairman Ceballos asked if there were any questions or comments. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to award Item 9H as discussed and recommended by staff 
to CEC Civil Engineering for land surveying and for civil engineering. 
Commissioner M s. Guerra seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

M s. Gaona mentioned that for No.3, structural engineering, staff was recommending 
to authorize the Executive Director to open negotiations with Synergy Structura l 
Engineering. Commissioner Or. Rodriguez moved to award to Synergy Structural 
Engineering. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that, to be clear, the points relate to the 
evaluation of the RFQ's, not to the tota ls and said correct. Ms. Gaona confirmed he was 
correct. Chairman Ceballos asked that for the future not to set up a table where the 
total does not reflect the ranking they put on the form because he thought it was 
confusing, it kind of indented the tota l. Ms. Gaona mention ed that the top were the 
minimum qualifications and stated that she had discussed it w ith Frank lopez. Chairman 
Ceballos stated that if they would not indent the total, it wou ld be fine, but if the total 
is indented, it kind of leads to bel ieve that the criteria would be points and he did not 
think it was reflected and stated that the RFQ has certain cri teria they are famili ar w ith 
and he wanted to make sure that it was understood and stated that he seconded the 
motion to award to Synergy Structural Engineering and asked if t here was any additional 
discussion . 

21 



Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to award the structural engineering to Synergy 
Structural Engineering. 
Chairman Ceballos seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

For the mechanica l, electrical and plumbing engineering staff was recommend ing to go 
with EED Engineering, Inc. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to award the mechanical, electrical and plumbing 
engineering to EED Engineering, Inc. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

M s. Gaona mentioned that for the environmental and the geo technica l and materials 
testing staff recommended having the ability to negotiate w ith O'Connor Engineering 
and also w ith Terracon Consultants because sometimes with grant dead lines they would 
be restra ined to t ime limits and they would like to have the ability to call one firm or the 
other. 

Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza moved to award the environmental and the geo technical 
and materials testing as recommended by staff. 
Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

I. Discussion and possib le action to award RFQ No. 190603-01 Quali fi ed Professional 
Consultants, and authorize the Executive Director to finalize negotiations and contract 
with the top recommended firm for the two consulting areas of concentration. 

M s. Gaona mentioned that for project manager staff was recommendi ng to go with 00-
Rite Inspect ions for the construction project management services and to go with 
Bronner Optimizing Government for the leadership and strategic process and 
performance management. Chairman Ceballos asked if there were other proponents 
for project manager. M s. Gaona responded that there were not. Chairman Ceballos 
asked Frank Lopez if he would clarify the scope of work. Mr. Lopez mentioned that for 
scope No. 1, wh ich w as project manager, they had Bronner Optimizing Government at 
88. Chairman Ceballos asked if they had also applied for construction. Mr. Lopez 
confirmed . Chairman Ceballos stated that the difference w as that one was local and 
the other was not and asked Mr. l opez to provide the variation. Mr. lopez responded 
that it was the availability and also the experience, speCifically in reference to 
construction project manager. Chairman Ceballos asked if they wou ld assign them a 
project. M s. Gaona responded that they just wanted to have them available for future 
project s. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that Bronner was the strategic planning firm 
and stated they had done Brownsville and asked if they were also interested in 
construction. Ms. Gaona confi rmed. Chairman Ceballos stated that he was surprised 
they were also interested in construction. 

22 



Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez asked whether it wou ld be best to have one doing the two 

scopes because the way she would see it was that scope 1 would be the project manager 
and the next one would be the st ra tegic process and wondered if it would be best to 
have the same one doing both. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was one of his 
comments because Do-Rite only does construction and Bronner, the strategic planner 
would be someone that would help them broadly from a high level from the Board to 
the Executive Director and Directors cra fting a strategic plan and also doing a 
performance measure type system for an agency which Do-Rite cannot do, he is a 
construction manager, but Paradox is a strategic planner, not in construction . Mr. l opez 
mentioned that they did a little bit less of experience in their proposal and in their 
qual ifications with a little bit less of experience in project management, but mostly it 
was Do-Rite that specifica lly focused in that area. 

Chairman Ceballos asked Ms. Mata if she wanted to make a comment. M s. Mata 
confirmed and stated that Bronner submitted for both scopes of work, however, the 
scope of work for the construction manager, it was not rea lly written towards 
construction, it was more for project manager in general, not const ruction; therefore, 
they recommended for it to be awarded to somebody else. Chairman Ceballos asked 
Ms. Gaona for the recommendations. M s. Gaona responded that fo r the project 
manager to go with Do-Rite Inspections and for the leadership and strategic process 
performance management to go with Bronner. 

Chairman Ceballos asked ifthey had interviewed all three and ifthey had talked to t hem 
on the st rategic side. M s. Gaona con firmed. Chairman Ceballos mentioned that it was 
the person doing the succession plan and mentioned they had some problems gett ing 
respondents because it had been on the works for so long. Mr. lopez confirmed. 
Chairman Ceballos mentioned that he was glad they had three responses and asked if 
there were any questions or a motion to accept the recommendations. 

Commissioner Dr. Rodriguez moved to approve Item 91 as recommended by staff. 
Commissioner Anita Guerra seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Chairman Ceballos stated that his comment, which he had already mentioned to Ms. 
Gaona, for all of those who are involved on RFQ's was to completely migrate to digital 
and stated that the box they had received for the meeting was an amazing box, it was 
just too much, so he asked everybody to ask their proponents to submit digitally and to 
come up with a system that complies with HUD; the proposa ls they had in the box was 
a lot and if they could work towards that. he would appreciate it and stated he thought 
it cou ld be done and that Robert already had an idea on how it would be done. Robert 
confirmed. 

J. Discussion and possible action to award QSP (Quotation fo r Small Purchase) for the 
Carlos Richter soffit and fa scia board repai rs and exterior painting. 



Ms. Gaona mentioned that it was an item that was approved during the budget process 
as one of the non- routine items for Carlos Richter Courts and the Manager at that 
property took it as approved prior to going through the procurement process and stated 
that they had the three bids and were bringing it back before the Board to ratify it and 
sa id that the job was about 90% complete. Chairman Ceba llos mentioned that it was a 
misunderstanding and that everything has to go through a process and they know, but 
they just needed to ratify it and stated that the work activity was approved by the Board, 
but the procurement of it did not come back to the Board although the process was 
followed, that it was bidded. Attorney Poneck was asked if he saw anyth ing that needed 
to be put on the record furthe r. Mr. Po neck sa id no. Chairman Ceballos asked if there 
were any comments or questions. Chairman Ceballos moved to app rove ratify ing the 
activity and indicated, for the record, that the activity was approved at a Board meeting 
and that the procurement process was followed although it did not go back to the Board 
for approval prior to the meeting. Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza stated that they need to be 
careful in the future about these situations and stated that he appreciated the Manager 
at Carlos Richter taking charge, but they needed to be reminded. Ms. Gaona stated that 
finan ce staff, Ms. Barrientos and Frank Lopez had met with Mr. Vidaurri and had a class 
with them in regards to the procedures. Chairman Ceballos stated that he thought 
internal control worked because it got add ressed at the point that it was identified and 
it speaks about internal control falling in place and stated that he had asked about the 
approva l and the approva l was not there for payment until it is duly taken care of and 
acknowledged and stated that fortunately it was an activity they had approved under 
the budgeting process, so it was Chairman Ceballos motion to proceed with ratifying 
the Carlos Richter soffit and fa sc ia board repairs and exterior painting item. 

Chairman Ceballos moved to approve Item 9J as discussed. 
Vice-Chairman Dr. Garza seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

K. Update discussion and possible action on the agency's site-based management 
reorganization and related staffing. 

l. Discuss ion and possib le action related to any manageme nt-positions hiring 
recommendations by the Executive. requiring Board consultation. 

10. EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION IN ACCDRDANCE WITH THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

The Board of Commiss ioners for the Housing Authority of the City of laredo reserve the right 
to adjourn into Executive Closed Session at any time during the course of this meeting to di scuss 
any of the matters li sted on the posted agenda, above, as autho rized by the Texas Government 
Code, including Sections 551.071 (consultation with attorneys), 551.072 (de liberations about 
real property), 551.073 (de liberations about gifts and donations). 551.074 (personnel matters). 
551.076 (deliberations about security devices), and 551.086 (economic development). 

11. ACTION ON ANY CLOSED SESSION ITEM 

24 



12. ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Ceballos moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Commissioner Anita Guerra seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:06 p.m . 

Jo l. Ceballos, Board Chairman 


